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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good afternoon.

          3  My name is Jim Gennaro, Chair of the New York

          4  Council's Committee on Environmental Protection.  I

          5  would like to welcome you to this hearing.

          6                 We are joined by my fellow Committee

          7  members, Council Members Lopez, Koppell, Recchia,

          8  and Vallone.  I am very honored to have them here

          9  with us today.

         10                 And I got some visuals here for you.

         11  Today's New York Times, that would be this, and the

         12  Daily News, it says, hold them up, okay, I am

         13  holding them up, reported that the air we breathe in

         14  the City every day is, unfortunately, contaminated

         15  with unhealthy levels of soot and other pollution

         16  particles.  Impure air, as we know, aggravates

         17  asthma, causes strokes, heart attacks, and even

         18  cancer.  The American Lung Association reported

         19  Greater New York City as the 13th worst city in the

         20  nation for ozone pollution.  Therefore, we must take

         21  every step we can to clean out the air that we

         22  breathe.

         23                 And today, this Committee will hear

         24  testimony on a piece of legislation that will

         25  further improve air quality and protect our own
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          2  environment.  I have signed onto this bill as a co-

          3  prime sponsor with Council Member Eva Moskowitz and

          4  many other members who have signed on.

          5                 Ordinarily, it is not my practice to

          6  sign onto a bill that comes into my Committee, until

          7  we are certain about them.  Just so that I can have

          8  that objectivity, but in this case, I have signed on

          9  as a sponsor of Intro. 110- A, which calls for

         10  stricter penalties for idling vehicles, and would

         11  require signage regarding the idling of motor

         12  vehicles.

         13                 Last year, this Committee held a

         14  hearing on Intro. 587, which was the predecessor to

         15  110- A.  Although the idling restrictions apply to

         16  all motor vehicles, with an exemption for legally

         17  authorized emergency vehicles, those vehicles that

         18  pose the most serious concern are those that run on

         19  diesel fuel.  Diesel exhausted can result in serious

         20  health effects, particularly in children, the

         21  elderly, and those with respiratory ailments.

         22                 Protection from motor vehicle exhaust

         23  is vitally important to us in improving air quality

         24  and safeguarding our health and environment.  To

         25  that end, Proposed Intro. 110- A seeks to strengthen
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          2  idling restrictions in New York City by changing the

          3  penalty structure for violations of the Idling Law,

          4  and also, to account for multiple violations and

          5  raising the maximum penalty for a first violation.

          6  It would also require the City DOT to post signs in

          7  common sense locations that say limitations of

          8  idling and maximum penalties that may be imposed for

          9  a violation.

         10                 Proposed Intro. 110 is a step in the

         11  right direction towards improving the quality of our

         12  air, and safeguarding the environment and health of

         13  City residents, workers, and visitors.

         14                 Before I call on our first witness, I

         15  just would like to make a special recognition of the

         16  leadership of Council Member Moskowitz, who will be

         17  here to speak on this very good, proposed intro.

         18                 I would ask all people, including the

         19  Council members, to put their cell phones on

         20  vibrate, David.

         21                 And I would also like to recognize

         22  the good work of the staff that made this Committee

         23  hearing possible.  As always, Donna De Costanzo and

         24  Richard Colon of the Committee staff.  Brittany

         25  Mariotti of my staff, Chris Many of the Mayor's
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          2  Office, who also does a great job for us.

          3                 And I would like to dedicated my work

          4  here today and this hearing to my mother of blessed

          5  memory, who would have been 76- years- old today.

          6                 So, it is my pleasure to call our

          7  first witness, but before I do that, Donna De

          8  Costanzo, the Counsel to the Committee, has to read

          9  into the record some legal things.  So I call upon,

         10  I recognize Donna De Costanzo.

         11                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  I just wanted to go

         12  through a few of the differences between Proposed

         13  Intro. 110- A and Intro. 110.  There are a couple of

         14  technical changes that were made, but in addition to

         15  those technical changes, the changes that were made

         16  to the penalty portion of the bill:  Intro. No. 110

         17  did not include a penalty structure for multiple

         18  violations.  Rather that bill increased the current

         19  minimum and maximum penalties from 220 to 875

         20  dollars to 750 to 1,500 dollars maximum penalty.

         21                 Proposed Intro. No. 110- A does

         22  include a structure for multiple penalties:  First

         23  violation, 220 to 1,000 dollars; a second violation

         24  within two years, 330 to 1,500 dollars; a third and

         25  subsequent violation within two years, 440 to 2,000
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          2  dollars.

          3                 Also, the version of Proposed Intro.

          4  110- A that we are hearing today, includes

          5  amendments to new Subdivision (b) of Section 24-

          6  163.  And in this instance, it is also different

          7  from the version of Intro. 110- A that was mailed

          8  out to people with the invitations.

          9                 Intro. 110 and that first version of

         10  110- A only required signs to be posted at bus

         11  terminal points, in staging and waiting areas.  The

         12  signs were to include idling restrictions and

         13  penalties associated violating such restrictions.

         14  The version we are hearing today only requires that

         15  maximum penalties in time restrictions regarding

         16  idling be posted.

         17                 Also, the bill that we are hearing

         18  today requires that the Department of Transportation

         19  post signs at other locations, including at each

         20  exit within the City of New York of each bridge and

         21  tunnel having only one terminus in the City of New

         22  York, at each bus layover point, and close proximity

         23  to the entrance to each school bus depot, at

         24  locations for which the City receives multiple

         25  complaints regarding idling, and at other
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          2  appropriate locations throughout the City as jointly

          3  determined by the Commissioners of Environmental

          4  Protection and Transportation, which shall include

          5  at least 10 truck route intersections and starting

          6  points within each of the five Boroughs of New York

          7  City, and these signs should not be posted no later

          8  than 180 days after the effective date of the law.

          9                 Also, the bill that we are hearing

         10  today, Proposed Intro. 110- A states that this local

         11  law shall take effect six months after its enactment

         12  into law, rather than 60 days, which is what Intro.

         13  110 had required.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         15  Donna.  And so it is my pleasure to call, as our

         16  first witnesses, Deputy Commissioner Robert

         17  Avaltroni of DEP, and Gerard Soffian of the New York

         18  City DOT.  And it is a pleasure to have you both

         19  here today.  We thank you for being here. And Bob,

         20  of course, testifies before this Committee on a

         21  regular basis, it always a pleasure to have you here

         22  with us, and we certainly appreciate your

         23  partnership with us over the years.  And it is also

         24  great to have DOT here.  We do not see you that much

         25  at this Committee, but great to have you here.
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          2                 So I will call upon Donna to give the

          3  oath, and then you can state your names for the

          4  record, and proceed with your good testimony.  Thank

          5  you.

          6                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Raise your right

          7  hand, in the testimony that you are about to give,

          8  do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the whole

          9  truth, and nothing but the truth?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  I do.

         11                 MR. SOFFIAN:  I do.

         12                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         14  thank you, please continue in whatever order you

         15  want to.  I have a statement from Bob, but not from

         16  DOT.  Does DOT have a statement?  Oh, fine, okay,

         17  thank you.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Mr.

         19  Chairman, again, let me offer my condolences to you

         20  on this day, and understanding what you are going

         21  through, I appreciate that very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Good

         24  afternoon, Mr. Chairman, and members of the

         25  Committee.  I am Bob Avaltroni, Deputy Commissioner
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          2  for Environmental Compliance.  On behalf of

          3  Commissioner Ward, thank you for this opportunity to

          4  present testimony in support of Intro. No. 110- A.

          5                 With me at the table is Gerard

          6  Soffian, Director of the Division of Signs and

          7  Marking for the Department of Transportation, who

          8  will be available to answer any questions.

          9                 The subject of Intro. No. 110- A is

         10  related to one of my Bureau's responsibilities at

         11  DEP.  Therefore, I appreciate the Committee's

         12  interest in this legislation, and I am hoping that

         13  the Committee in tangent with DEP and DOT can work

         14  together to improve the air quality for the City.

         15                 The purpose of my testimony this

         16  afternoon is to summarize the background and purpose

         17  of this testimony, as well as to explain certain

         18  administrative constraints with this legislation

         19  that I am confident can be resolved.

         20                 Intro. 110- A amends Section 24- 163

         21  of the Administrative Code by increasing the

         22  potential penalties that may be assessed for

         23  violations of the Idling Law, as well as requiring

         24  anti- idling signage at bus terminals and other

         25  appropriate areas.  I will address each section of
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          2  the legislation separately.

          3                 With respect to increased penalties:

          4  The Administration supports penalty change that

          5  would increase the compliance and reduce vehicle

          6  emissions while idling. The current penalty

          7  structure for violating the City's idling

          8  restrictions is a minimum of $220, and a maximum of

          9  $875 without a distinction for second and subsequent

         10  violations.  This legislation will maintain the

         11  minimum penalty of $220, but increase the maximum

         12  penalty to $1,00 for a first violation.  The

         13  legislation will also provide for penalties as high

         14  as $2,000 for second and subsequent violations.

         15  Such an increase, in our minds, is reasonable since

         16  the penalties have not been amended since 1985, when

         17  the idling restrictions were first enacted.  This

         18  increase in the penalty structure could help

         19  determined noncompliance, in fact, that should be

         20  the intent.  In Fiscal Year 2003, 324 violations

         21  were issued by DEP and other agencies.

         22                 One potential concern that the

         23  Administration does have concerning penalties for

         24  subsequent violations, is that the Transit Authority

         25  does not receive a Notice of Violation from DEP and
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          2  other agencies because the TA is not subjective to

          3  the Administrative Code.  This will fall under the

          4  area of the State.  DEP has entered into a

          5  Memorandum of Understanding which enables DEP,

          6  pursuant to the Public Authorities Law, to issue an

          7  Adverse Environmental Condition Notification. This

          8  Notification serves as notice that the TA is not in

          9  compliance with the Administrative Code, and they

         10  are directed to correct the adverse condition.  DEP

         11  may then reinspect.  Therefore, this piece of the

         12  legislation will not directly impact against the TA.

         13    Again, we work with the State in that regard, and

         14  I think you folks can understand that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  With

         17  respect to signage, Intro. 110- A further provides

         18  that the Department of Transportation shall post

         19  signs stating the restrictions and penalties that

         20  may be imposed for a violation of the idling

         21  restrictions.  This legislation will require that

         22  signs be posted at every bus terminal point and

         23  other appropriate locations throughout the City as

         24  determine by the Commissioner of DEP and the

         25  Commissioner of DOT.  As Administration
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          2  representatives have discussed with your counsel,

          3  the language contained in the signs needs to reflect

          4  the federal regulation set forth in the Manual on

          5  Uniform Traffic Control Devices.  This regulation

          6  governs the size of the letters as well as the

          7  actual size of the signs that can be used.  Signs

          8  and the lettering on them at the bridges, tunnels

          9  and along truck routes would need to be quite large

         10  in order to be seen, which would limit the amount of

         11  information that can be contained on the signs.

         12  Again, we want to make sure that the message is

         13  clear to those that are coming into the City.

         14  Giving DOT the flexibility to determine the

         15  information contained on each sign is an important

         16  change that we are hopeful that the Council make to

         17  this legislation.

         18                 The Administration supports measures

         19  to reduce idling from school buses, and looks

         20  forward to working with partners at other levels of

         21  government to reduce unnecessary idling.  The

         22  Administration believe education and outreach are

         23  key factors to obtaining compliance with City rules

         24  and regulations, however, we understand that those

         25  two factors alone may not be sufficient to achieving
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          2  full compliance.  This bill as written requires DOT

          3  to place signs at all school bus depots.  Generally,

          4  City staff would not enter the private property of a

          5  school bus depot, therefore DOT would place the no

          6  idling sign outside the depot, on a street.  From a

          7  practical standpoint, placing the responsibility on

          8  the depot owner/operator to place the sign on the

          9  property, rather than on the City agency to erect

         10  the sign on the streets, is a better mechanism, we

         11  feel, to obtain compliance.  Having depot owners

         12  erect signs on their property means drivers will see

         13  the signs every day and will be constantly reminded

         14  doffing the law, while signs outside the depot may

         15  be ignored.

         16                 DEP through our Economic Development

         17  Assistance Unit, which is under my responsibility

         18  again, is willing and able to provide educational

         19  outreach programs and workshops that explain the

         20  idling rules and regulations to the regulated

         21  community.  We feel, again, this would be effective,

         22  not only having a sign, but explaining what our

         23  intent is again.  DEP believes working directly with

         24  the depot owners is the most comprehensive, prudent

         25  and effective way of reaching our collective goals
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          2  of Council and, which is to reduce idling.  That is

          3  our collective responsibilities.

          4                 Finally, although DEP and DOT believe

          5  that education and outreach are the most effective

          6  ways to get individuals to comply with the idling

          7  rules, signs can also be a useful tool.  Therefore,

          8  DOT is committed to posting two anti- idling signs

          9  at each Borough at two intersecting truck routes.

         10  This will help serve a reminders to truck drivers

         11  that the City has anti- idling laws as well as to

         12  ensure that the needs of each Borough, to reduce the

         13  idling emissions, are addressed as determined by the

         14  Commissioner of DOT.  Additional signage will be

         15  placed at locations deemed appropriate by the DOT

         16  and DEP Commissioner, which will be based on

         17  complaints by each department where idling is most

         18  problematic.  Therefore, we have an issue, I think,

         19  with fair share, but we are also going to areas that

         20  are most affected.

         21                 The Administration supports the

         22  intent of Intro. 110- A and would like to see the

         23  Administration suggestions to the legislation,

         24  outlined in my testimony, made in order to even make

         25  a more effective piece of legislation that the City
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          2  will benefit from.  I thank you for this opportunity

          3  to present testimony.  And I, along with Gerard, are

          4  happy to answer any questions the Committee may

          5  have.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, and

          7  thank you very much for your comprehensive and

          8  thoughtful testimony.  I do have questions to ask

          9  you, but as I, just let me say again what I said

         10  before during my opening statement that we are here

         11  today due to the leadership of Council Member

         12  Markowitz, who has drafted this Proposed Intro.,

         13  which has 30 something sponsors now.  And I would

         14  like to have the opportunity for Eva to make a

         15  statement on this legislation.  I recognize Council

         16  Member Moskowitz.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you,

         18  Chair Gennaro, and thank you for all the work that

         19  you have done on behalf of New Yorkers in terms of

         20  the air that they breathe, and our environment, in

         21  general.

         22                 I just want to say that the impetus

         23  for this bill was the constant complaints that my

         24  office, my district office gets on bus idling and

         25  truck idling.  It appears that it has just been

                                                            17

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  built into the very fabric of the economics of doing

          3  business in the City that individuals and companies

          4  assume that this is, they are going to get some

          5  modest fine and they, you know, incorporate that

          6  into their cost structure.  But it is extremely

          7  unpleasant, and not long after I had drafted this

          8  bill, I had my two children at a pizza parlor and

          9  there was a truck whose exhaust was exactly in front

         10  of the doorway, and three minutes went by, and five

         11  minutes went by.  The owner, incredibly, had left

         12  the keys in the truck, and was nowhere to be found.

         13  I guess he was delivering something, and I had my

         14  two children breathing, and it was a very small

         15  pizza shop, so there was nowhere to go, and the kids

         16  did not want to leave because they wanted to finish

         17  their pizza, even though it was clearly unhealthy.

         18                 And I just think this is a problem,

         19  and the design behind this bill was to try and

         20  figure out cost effective ways of solving this

         21  problem.  It obviously is not a bill designed to

         22  generate revenue in terms of tickets.  And my view

         23  of signage is that that is a cheaper way to remind

         24  people when I casually, you know, talk to drivers

         25  about do they know there is an Idling Law when
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          2  constituents, for example, call to complain, they do

          3  not even know that there is a three- minute Idling

          4  Law.

          5                 And I am very fond of those signs

          6  that say, "Don't even think of parking here."  They

          7  have been enormously effective.  I, myself, am

          8  tempted every once in while when I am in a pinch,

          9  you know, what do I do, and I know that the

         10  consequences are quite grave.  So I think letting

         11  the public and drivers know that this a problem

         12  would be a cost- effective way to get at this rather

         13  serious environmental issue.

         14                 So I look forward to working with the

         15  Chair, and his Council in addressing any reasonable

         16  concerns that those before us have.  But ultimately

         17  moving forward in an expeditious way so that we can

         18  address this problem.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         21  Council Member Moskowitz.  Thank you for all of your

         22  work on this issue.  We are happy to have you here

         23  with us today, and as you heard, we have a statement

         24  from the Administration indicating that they are

         25  very supportive of your efforts here, and we are all
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          2  behind you, as well.  It is just a matter of working

          3  out some of the details.

          4                 And with that said, why don't I

          5  start.  I am referencing your statement here.  On

          6  page 3 of your statement, at the bottom, you

          7  discussed the Uniformed Traffic Control Devices, the

          8  Manual Uniformed Traffic Control Devices sort of

          9  sets out the size of the letters and the size of the

         10  signs that have to be used.  And it seems as though

         11  there is some issue of whether or not the verbiage

         12  that we need to put on the sign would fit on a sign

         13  that was within those parameters, and with letters

         14  that met the standards.

         15                 And I guess my question is, if all

         16  that we are seeing that we want to state that they

         17  cannot idle more than three minutes, and like what

         18  the penalties are, well we state what the maximum

         19  penalties are, not what the whole penalty structure

         20  is, we do not know why that would not fit on the

         21  sign.  So we would like you to expand upon that a

         22  little bit.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Okay,

         24  I think, I do not think we are disagreeing

         25  essentially on the concept.  I think what we want to
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          2  do, is we want to make sure that in using a message

          3  we get the message that is clear and concise, on

          4  really what we want to achieve the objective.  That

          5  there is, in fact, as Council Member Moskowitz

          6  alluded to, a law in the City of New York with

          7  respect to idling.  So we want to remind people, in

          8  fact, that this is in existence, this is what it

          9  means, and this is what the penalty is.

         10                 Now we do not want something that

         11  would be a billboard effect, because, again, while

         12  we can never use economy, and you know, Council

         13  Member Moskowitz mentioned that in her statement as

         14  a prohibited factor in achieving a result.  We want

         15  to be prudent in the way that we do this so the

         16  message is concise, clear and concise on what we are

         17  attempting to do.  That there is a law in the City

         18  of New York.  We expect it to be obeyed, but we do

         19  not want to go in a situation where we have an

         20  unbearable situation where the amount per sign is

         21  ridiculous.

         22                 So our intent, again, is to put these

         23  up strategically using our minds collectively that

         24  will be effective in giving the message and allowing

         25  those that drive and those that idle knowing what
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          2  the laws are in the City of New York.

          3                 And also, what I alluded to in my

          4  testimony beyond what we are speaking of, I think we

          5  need, and I think Council Member Moskowitz really

          6  hit on this point. We need to educate more, we need

          7  to make people aware, that there is, we have an

          8  Idling Law.  And when I spoke to that with regard to

          9  bus depots, I think we will do that through the

         10  medallion in my area.  We need to go out and really

         11  spell out what we expect of those people, and what

         12  the penalties would be.

         13                 And I think by enhancing, I am going

         14  a step further, by enhancing the penalty structure

         15  that we have here, also will force the compliance.

         16                 MR. SOFFIAN:  If I may, I would like

         17  to supplement some - -

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.  All we

         19  are really asking for is like the time restrictions,

         20  the three minutes, and the maximum penalty.  And so

         21  are we kind of agreeing here?

         22                 MR. SOFFIAN:  I think we are

         23  generally in agreement, but the signs have to be

         24  clear and understandable for the conditions that

         25  they are being read under.  A sign posted, for
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          2  example, at a bus layover location where the bus

          3  driver is stopped and has a chance to read the sign.

          4    Somewhat to a condition a motorist observes the

          5  parking regulation.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I am not

          7  talking about the placement of the signs, I am just

          8  talking about the size of the sign and what it is

          9  going to look like.

         10                 MR. SOFFIAN:  But a sign - -

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  That is my next

         12  question, how many signs?

         13                 MR. SOFFIAN:  But a sign on the

         14  highway would have to be, would have to have

         15  different characteristics than a sign on a City

         16  street.  And a sign on a highway has to be read at

         17  30, 40, or 50 miles per hour, so it has to be

         18  larger, it has to be, the message has to be very

         19  clear and very simple.  And that is our only concern

         20  that we want to be able to have a sign that is of a

         21  reasonable size, contain the legends that are most

         22  important about the Idling Law that they are

         23  strictly enforced.  And we will put as much wordage

         24  as we can within the location where the sign is

         25  going to be placed.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  My next

          3  question has to do with the placement of signs on

          4  page 5 of your testimony.  You indicated that there

          5  is a commitment from DOT to post two anti- idling

          6  signs in each Borough. And I believe the legislation

          7  calls for 10 signs per Borough.  Of course, as I am

          8  saying that not all boroughs are created equal in

          9  terms of size and population.  But it just seems

         10  that with the cost of each sign running only a

         11  couple of hundred dollars or whatever, I do not know

         12  why there would be an issue on numbers of signs.

         13                 And also, while we are at it, I mean,

         14  how much would it cost to put a sign up, sort of per

         15  sign?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

         17  First, let me clarify, what I think, unless I am

         18  misinterpreting, I think what we are looking to do

         19  is several signs in each Borough, but we are also

         20  going to look at a matter of practicality where the

         21  offenders are, and where we have problems.  That is

         22  what I alluded to, when I alluded to fair share.

         23  For instance, we are going to look at the boroughs

         24  where we have the problems, and we are going to put

         25  signs.
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          2                 So, you know, I think we need to look

          3  at that.  And with respect, I will let my colleague,

          4  obviously from DOT, speak to the amount of money

          5  they cost.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure, go ahead.

          7                 MR. SOFFIAN:  The cost to put up a

          8  sign is approximately $300 per sign, that includes

          9  the cost of the materials, the manufacturer, the

         10  installation, going through inspections, and the

         11  audit writing to make sure that the sign is

         12  installed properly, and we keep records, we document

         13  that the installation was done properly.

         14                 What we are envisioning in terms of

         15  signs on the truck routes was to put the signs in a

         16  place that is very prominent.  A place where we

         17  anticipate there will be many truckers going.  So

         18  that is why we recommend at locations where truck

         19  routes intersect.  Where you have the truck drivers

         20  going, field from many different locations. We feel

         21  that would be more prominent than, for example,

         22  simply at the beginning of a truck route where the

         23  accumulation of trucks might not yet have occurred.

         24  Somewhere along midway on a truck route typically

         25  has the heavier truck volumes.
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          2                 Now as far as the number is

          3  concerned, we were recommending two in each Borough.

          4    I thought that was something that was consistent

          5  with what the Council's bill was saying.  That was

          6  our reading.  Maybe there was some ambiguity there,

          7  and we miscounted.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, the bill,

          9  as it is written now, calls for 10 per Borough.

         10                 MR. SOFFIAN:  Well if that is the

         11  case, if that is the intent of the Council, we

         12  certainly can installation 10 such signs in each

         13  Borough at the truck routes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.  How

         15  many such truck route intersections are there?

         16                 MR. SOFFIAN:  There count, we will

         17  say they criss- cross each Borough, and typically in

         18  major traveled corridors in very busy locations.

         19  And I do not think we would have any difficulty

         20  finding 10 in each Borough.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure, yes, I

         22  mean, if I have to, I guess I can even cancel one of

         23  my newsletters and use the money from that, or - -

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes,

         25  I think maybe as we suggested, maybe there was a
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          2  misunderstanding, because we read the legislation a

          3  little differently.  But we are not going to tie

          4  ourselves, tie our hands in terms of getting the

          5  message out.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, I mean, I

          7  think it is very good that our differences are so

          8  minimum.  This is just working out the real fine

          9  details.  So we are certainly happy to have you in

         10  support of this.

         11                 I would also like to recognize, I

         12  have been joined by Council Members Gallagher and

         13  Councilman DeBlasio from Brooklyn.  I am happy to

         14  have them with us here today, as always, valued

         15  members of the Committee.

         16                 And you mentioned about, also,

         17  something about the bus depots, whatever; the signs

         18  should be internal to the lot, rather than like on

         19  the street, outside, if you could just expand upon

         20  that rationale.  And whether there is any precedent

         21  for it with other signages that are in depots, if it

         22  is mandated to be there?  Go ahead.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes,

         24  I think it is our feeling, obviously, from two

         25  perspectives.  You have private property.  You are
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          2  going to have someone, if you really want the

          3  message to get out, if someone has to view that sign

          4  every day when they arrive at work, it is going to

          5  be very clear to them.

          6                 We have the potential of vandalism

          7  outside, where I think it is less likely on private

          8  property.

          9                 So in essence, what we are also

         10  doing, is we are buying a stakeholder in this.  And

         11  I think, you know, those folks that are operating

         12  out there, they want to comply with the law.  We

         13  just need to further articulate to them about bus

         14  idling.  And again, that goes back to the area that

         15  I suggested we have an outreach program to these

         16  folks and speak with them on what our expectations

         17  are.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         19  thank you. I do have some more questions, but I know

         20  that Council Member Gallagher has either a question

         21  or a statement.  I would like to give him an

         22  opportunity to be heard.  I recognize Council Member

         23  Gallagher.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:   Thank

         25  you, Mr. Chairman.  First, let me apologize for not
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          2  being here for your entire testimony.  At the same

          3  time as this hearing, over at 250 Broadway is the

          4  Queens Delegation's Executive Budget hearings where

          5  all the organizations, Countywide, come in.  So I

          6  was there previously.

          7                 Commissioner, I do not have a comment

          8  today, so you are safe.  I really wanted to just say

          9  a few good words.  Too often, we, as elected

         10  officials, fail to recognize the outstanding job

         11  that some of our public servants do.  And in

         12  particular, I was reminded of one who is sitting in

         13  the front row here, Mark Lanigan, who often comes

         14  out to my Town Hall meetings and does an exceptional

         15  job in working with the constituents in the 30th

         16  Council District to resolve some of their issues.

         17  And I will say that Mark has a tremendous amount of

         18  patience, because some of the questions and comments

         19  tend to be, well, somewhat difficult to handle when

         20  you have an irate constituent. But he certainly is a

         21  gentleman, and he has a very able staff.  And it is

         22  nice to know that government works, and that we have

         23  so many effective people that are in government.

         24                 So I wanted to take this opportunity

         25  at this Committee hearing today, to say, thank you,
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          2  Mark, thank you to your staff, and thank you for

          3  your testimony.

          4                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          6  Council Member Gallagher.  Wow, that is great, you

          7  know, we long have had a relationship, we have got a

          8  little bit like a Mark Lanigan fan club going, so

          9  you can be the latest member.  I know that is great,

         10  that is great.

         11                 Okay, how does the City handle

         12  repeated violations of idling restrictions right

         13  now?  There is no provision; is there for increased

         14  penalties?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

         16  Again, I think the intent of the bill, obviously,

         17  would be higher penalty structure, which is going to

         18  foster compliance.  We would revisit areas where we

         19  have idling problems, but again, you are going to,

         20  by this legislation, you are going to have a bigger

         21  stick in terms of making the monetary issue to those

         22  that violate.  And we support that completely.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, but you

         24  are supportive of increased fines for multiple

         25  violators, and there will be a method for tracking
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          2  that, and so you are on- board with not just having

          3  the effects - -

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

          5  Absolutely.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: - -  for the

          7  first violation, but for --

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  We

          9  feel that any time you are making the penalty

         10  higher, you are fostering compliance.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  And at

         12  the risk of getting you to sort of speak for ECB a

         13  little bit, how does ECB determine the penalty that

         14  will be assessed in the current range, how does that

         15  happen?  Is that something done by the person who

         16  writes the violation for a certain amount, or is

         17  that done during adjudication at the ECB where the

         18  level is set?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Well

         20  you know ECB, again, is the forum to have a summons

         21  adjudicated.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  You

         24  are found guilty or innocent on the merits of the

         25  summons as written.  There is a set penalty scale, I
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          2  believe in effect, and you know, and we will

          3  further, you know, an increase penalty fee scale to

          4  ECB with the proposed legislation.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.  I guess

          6  I am just trying to figure out whether the, for

          7  example, there is a range with the first violation.

          8  It is 200 to 1,000, or whatever it is.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Does the

         11  officer who is writing the ticket make a

         12  determination as to what the penalty should be, like

         13  within the range, or is that left for ECB during

         14  adjudication?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  There

         16  is a definite distinction between the two.  Again,

         17  the reason ECB is set up the way it is, it is so a

         18  person can get a fair and impartial hearing.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  So

         21  therefore, our issuance will be based on the defined

         22  and penalty amount, and then whatever goes before

         23  ECB winds up in a separate depository, that is where

         24  people get a fair and a reasonable adjudication

         25  process.  And we would not want to intermingle the
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          2  two because that in essence would be a conflict.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  But, I guess, I

          4  am just wondering, if I were in my vehicle idling,

          5  and let's say I would get a summons, my first one

          6  for idling, I would be subject to a penalty of

          7  anywhere between 200 and 1,000 dollars.  Is the

          8  person who is writing the violation, makes a

          9  recommendation of what he or she thinks would be an

         10  appropriate penalty?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  A

         12  judge will make the determination at the hearing, as

         13  well.  All right, a judge will make the

         14  determination.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, so - -

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  But

         17  again, that is an area where I would like not to go

         18  because we are DEP, and ECB is sort of independent,

         19  and it allows them the opportunity to - -

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:   Okay, so we

         21  will just speak for DEP, so DEP writes the ticket -

         22   -

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

         24  Right.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:   They do not
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          2  put a dollar amount and say this guy looks like its

          3  a $500 violation.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  It

          5  goes and it will be heard before ECB.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  In other words,

          7  and then ECB would be the one to know whether the

          8  person is a multiple violator, or what the deal is?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  And

         11  there will be a different, would there be different

         12  penalties that would be assessed for past new

         13  vehicles versus buses that are presumably bigger

         14  emitters for that?  Would there be a scale that

         15  would work for bus penalties versus passenger

         16  vehicles?  What would you envision, how would that

         17  work?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Off

         19  the top of my head, I would not answer that with you

         20  right now, but something, clearly, we could work

         21  out.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  In your

         23  statement, you talked about what goes on with regard

         24  to you and the TA, and you cannot issue them,

         25  technically NOV. You can give them this warning or
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          2  statement, or whatever the heck it is, and you can

          3  go back and reinspect, or whatever.  Is there a

          4  possibility for, do you have the authority to ticket

          5  the driver and not the MTA?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  No,

          7  we do not.  The responsibility, again, would be that

          8  of the Transit Authority.  But we do have a very

          9  good rapport with the Transit Authority.  And where

         10  we have situations that are problematic, they want

         11  to be good citizens and we deal with them.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  I do not

         13  have any other questions for the witnesses.  Does

         14  anyone else have questions for the witnesses?  I

         15  would like to thank you for coming today, thank you

         16  for being supportive of this important bill.  And I

         17  want to thank all the staff for working so hard with

         18  the staff of the Committee, to bring us to the point

         19  where we can, you know, move this bill forward.  So

         20  please take our greetings back to your respective

         21  Commissioners, and we appreciate your ongoing

         22  support of this initiative.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Thank

         24  you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,
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          2  thank you, gentlemen.

          3                 Okay, the next witness is Mr. Clyde

          4  Hart of the American Bus Association.  Thank you,

          5  Mr. Hart, thank you for being with us today.  I know

          6  the American Bus Association is in Washington.  Did

          7  you come up from Washington to this hearing today?

          8                 MR. HART:  Yes, I did.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  So thank you

         10  for coming.  We appreciate the opportunity to hear

         11  your views. Thank you for your statement, and Donna

         12  De Costanzo will swear you in, and then you can

         13  proceed with your testimony.

         14                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  In the testimony

         15  that you are about to give, do you swear or affirm

         16  to tell the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but

         17  the truth?

         18                 MR. HART:  I do.

         19                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Mr.

         21  Hart, welcome.  Please begin.

         22                 MR. HART:  Mr. Chairman, thank you

         23  very much.  Members of the City Council, my name is

         24  Clyde Hart, and I am Vice- President of Government

         25  Affairs for the American Bus Association.  On behalf
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          2  of the Association, I want to thank you for the

          3  opportunity to testify before you on the issue of

          4  restricting motor vehicle idling in New York City.

          5                 The American Bus Association is the

          6  trade association for the over- the- road motorcoach

          7  industry in North America.  The ABA is made up of

          8  3,400- member organizations engaged in the tour and

          9  travel industry.  Our membership includes the State

         10  of New York, most of the boroughs in and around New

         11  York City, the Empire State Building, the Schubert

         12  Theater, and New York City and Company.

         13                 In addition, ABA has over 800 bus

         14  operators who provide all manner of transportation

         15  services to the traveling public.  In the New York

         16  City area, our membership list includes Academy

         17  Budget Tours, which provides commuter service to and

         18  from New York City.  Grey Hound Bus Lines and Peter

         19  Pan Bus Lines, who provide intercity service, as

         20  well as bus tour companies, such as Coach USA, and

         21  New York based companies like Harran Coaches, Campus

         22  Coach, and Hampton Jitney.

         23                 The intercity bus industry is the

         24  largest transportation network in the United States.

         25    We provide service to 774 million passengers each
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          2  year.  This number far exceeds even the airline

          3  industry, which transports some 570 million per

          4  year, and Amtrak, which is used by 23 million

          5  passengers each year.  In fact, the intercity bus

          6  industry transports more people in two weeks than

          7  Amtrak does in a year.  The importance of the

          8  industry to the national, state, and local economies

          9  is not limited to transportation.  The economic

         10  reach, if you will, of the industry can be gaged by

         11  the hotels, tourist destinations, and restaurants

         12  that revealed ABA members.  Indeed, a recent study

         13  by the George Washington University demonstrates

         14  that each motorcoach load of tourists in New York

         15  City spends an average of $4,563 on meals,

         16  attractions, fuel, and fees in one day.  If the same

         17  bus load stays overnight, the average amount spent

         18  jumps to $11,264.

         19                 Thus, the motorcoach industry

         20  delivers many people to New York City.  The

         21  commuters who come to the Port Authority Bus

         22  Terminal; the visitors who take the bus from local

         23  airports; and the students, senior citizens groups,

         24  and special charters who come into the City by

         25  motorcoach.  There are millions of visitors who use
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          2  motorcoaches every day while in the five boroughs of

          3  New York.  Indeed, ABA believes that during peak

          4  periods, there are a thousand commuter buses, a

          5  thousand charter, and tour buses in New York City

          6  each day.  Despite the large number of residents and

          7  guests who use motorcoach services, New York City

          8  has a reputation of being less than friendly to

          9  motorcoach operators.  An unfortunate reputation,

         10  which the legislation under consideration today,

         11  will only cement in the minds of the men and women

         12  who lead the charter and tour industry.

         13                 As we understand it, the bill under

         14  consideration will amend the New York City

         15  Administrative Code to increase the penalties for

         16  violation of the idling provisions of that Code, and

         17  require the City Department of Transportation to

         18  post signs detailing the restrictions and the

         19  penalties for their violation.

         20                 Present regulations prevent buses

         21  from idling for over three minutes, and prohibit any

         22  idling while parking, standing, or stopping at any

         23  terminal point. The ABA respectively submits that

         24  the present regulation is unworkable and is a

         25  detriment to tourism in the City. Moreover, the
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          2  idling regulations do not and cannot reduce air

          3  pollution or congestion in the City, and certainly

          4  increasing the penalties for violation of the

          5  regulations will not aid the City in any material

          6  respect.

          7                 Simply stated there is no way for a

          8  fully loaded motorcoach to safely load or unload

          9  passengers and their baggage within the three

         10  minutes allowed by the regulation.  Any motorcoach

         11  will just require more time.  In addition, the

         12  amount of time required will increase with the age

         13  and the passengers lack of mobility.  Furthermore,

         14  it is ABA's experience that younger school aged

         15  children will require more, rather than less time to

         16  embark or disembark from a bus.  Finally, if

         17  passengers are disabled even more time will be

         18  required to see to their needs.

         19                 Another defect of the idling

         20  regulation is the prohibition of any idling whenever

         21  the ambient temperature is in excess of 40 degrees

         22  Fahrenheit.  The motorcoach is designed to provide

         23  air conditioning, as well as heat, to the passengers

         24  only when the motor is running. Thus, without

         25  idling, there is no cool air for the passengers in
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          2  the summer, or heat for them in the winter. Even

          3  more significantly, the motorcoach engine provides

          4  power for the brakes to operate.  A motorcoach

          5  requires more than three minutes to provide braking

          6  power.  Indeed, depending upon the severity of the

          7  weather, it can take up to 30 minutes before the

          8  vehicle can provide some modicum of comfort to the

          9  passengers.  As to the time needed to ensure

         10  sufficient power to the brakes, it is clear that any

         11  driver who engages the engine just after three

         12  minutes cannot be completely sure that the brakes

         13  will function correctly in an emergency situation.

         14                 What is missing from the current

         15  regulation is any indication that the health and

         16  safety needs of the passengers were taken into

         17  account when the regulation was adopted.  ABA

         18  members have a certain expertise in these matters.

         19  Forty percent of our passenger base is made up of

         20  the elderly and up to 40 percent of our base are

         21  students, two groups that are most sensitive to

         22  temperature fluctuations.

         23                 Finally, ABA would ask the City

         24  Council to re- examine its reliance on increased

         25  penalties to compel enforcement of what we have
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          2  shown is an unworkable regulation.

          3                 Any increase in these penalties is

          4  not only unfair, but also ultimately self-

          5  defeating.  The lack of bus parking makes it a

          6  certainty that more motorcoaches will be forced to

          7  circle the area until a suitable place for loading

          8  or unloading is found.  This will do nothing to help

          9  air pollution or congestion, but it will make it

         10  more likely that the driver will get a ticket for

         11  idling longer than three minutes.  The penalty is a

         12  cost to the operator, but as a competitive matter,

         13  it is not a cost the operator will pass onto the

         14  chartered or to the individual passenger.  Enough

         15  such penalties will force some operators to curtail

         16  operations in New York City, thus depriving the City

         17  of tourism revenue, the motorcoach of operations

         18  revenue, and the City of Tax Revenue.  New York City

         19  will find that she will lose more than she gains by

         20  this increase in penalties.

         21                 ABA asks for your help in finding

         22  ways to alleviate the bus- parking crisis, and to

         23  work with us in ways to find sources of state and

         24  federal funding that also helps solve the bus idling

         25  problem.  In particular, ABA asks the City to join
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          2  us in urging the federal government to fund the

          3  research and development and testing of new

          4  technologies that will allow motorcoaches to idle

          5  without producing air pollution emissions.

          6                 ABA also asks that you join us in our

          7  idling campaign in which we seek to educate the

          8  motorcoach industry on the benefits of restricting

          9  idling to the public and to the operators, bottom

         10  line.  At the same time, ABA wants to educate the

         11  public to the advantages of the health, safety, and

         12  comfort associated with using motorcoaches.

         13                 Once again, we would like to thank

         14  you for this opportunity to ensure, and wants to

         15  ensure you of our continuing efforts to find

         16  adequate bus parking, and to enacted fair, idling

         17  regulations.

         18                 I am prepared to answer any questions

         19  you might have, Mr. Chairman.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Mr.

         21  Hart, thank you for your comprehensive testimony.

         22  Thank you for coming all this way to bring it to us.

         23

         24                 And I am actually not sure if my next

         25  question is for you or for Committee Counsel,
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          2  because you make a point in your testimony regarding

          3  the amount of time it takes people to disembark from

          4  the coach, and the law, as I see here, says that the

          5  engine can run if the engine is used to operate

          6  loading, unloading, or processing device.  And I

          7  guess, I am wondering if this loading or unloading

          8  would also include passengers, I guess, loading or

          9  unloading, you know.  And I do not know if it really

         10  has that interpretation.  I guess I would like to

         11  ask you what you think it means, and then I will

         12  also direct the Counsel to the Committee to study

         13  that question to see whether or not this would

         14  provide some relief for the loading and unloading

         15  measures.

         16                 But notwithstanding that, it is sort

         17  of a question that is embedded in that is, what is

         18  the need to keep the engine running while people are

         19  getting on and off anyway?

         20                 MR. HART:  Well there is two, let me,

         21  two parts to that question.

         22                 Number one, when the passengers are

         23  unloading on a bus, it is our experience that more

         24  than a few of them would like to have heat to the

         25  bus as they are getting on.  So the bus needs to
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          2  have been operated before they get on the bus.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

          4                 MR. HART:  So that is number one.

          5                 Number two, to answer your question

          6  about the device, when I looked at that language, I

          7  thought it might apply to a wheelchair lift.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

          9                 MR. HART:  Because that is a device

         10   --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Some of

         12  wheelchair device being powered - -

         13                 MR. HART:  Right, exactly.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: - - by the bus.

         15                 MR. HART:  That, obviously, does

         16  narrow the gap, but it does not completely close the

         17  gap, because you have elderly people who do not need

         18  a wheelchair to get on and off a bus.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes.

         20                 MR. HART:  But if that device does

         21  include wheelchair lifts, then obviously that is

         22  something that we would be in favor of, and I would

         23  love to work with Committee Counsel.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure, okay, she

         25  is excellent to work with.
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          2                 So, if we are not talking about a

          3  wheelchair lift or whatever, it is really a kind of

          4  a climate control issue to have the bus run.

          5                 MR. HART:  Well it is a climate

          6  control issue, it is also a health issue with regard

          7  to, I mean, I was in New York in January during that

          8  cold spell, and it got very cold, it was like 3 or 4

          9  degrees some mornings when I got up.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes.

         11                 MR. HART:  And you know, for some

         12  people that kind of bitter cold that is a health

         13  issue.  It is not just a comfort issue.

         14                 And then too, there is the issue

         15  about the brakes.  You do need power to the brakes,

         16  which is controlled by the engine.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, and how

         18  much time do you need, I guess motorcoaches are

         19  different, but how much time does one need to get

         20  the brakes ready, and is it a function of, is there

         21  some kind of hydraulic pressure that has to build up

         22  or something?

         23                 MR. HART:  Yes, that is exactly

         24  right, air pressure has to build up before the

         25  brakes can be fully --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Because I think

          3  ultimately, like what we are going to see, and this

          4  is not like I am a great predictor or whatever, but

          5  ultimately, I think in the future you are going to

          6  see buses that have some sort, you know, that have

          7  the ability through battery power or some other

          8  source of power to operate the lifts and the climate

          9  control systems, and the hydraulic pressure, absent

         10  the engine running, which would be used only to

         11  propel the bus.

         12                 MR. HART:  Interesting you should

         13  mention that.  There is one such technology that is

         14  in a pilot program now, where they are basically

         15  stanchions where the bus can plug into.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

         17                 MR. HART:  But the problem with that

         18  is it requires a great deal of room.  It is not that

         19  you could do that in Midtown Manhattan, or even

         20  Lower Manhattan, for that matter.  So you need a

         21  great deal of room for the buses to be able to plug

         22  in, and therefore, the heat and the light and the

         23  brakes could run without resorting to the engine

         24  being turned on.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.
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          2                 MR. HART:  That technology, that is

          3  one of the technologies we would very much like the

          4  federal government to help us fund the research and

          5  development for, but that is a long way off.

          6                 I agree with you that ultimately we

          7  may get there, but you and I might be needing a

          8  wheelchair lift by the time that happens.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  So how

         10  long does it take to warm the bus up for hydraulic

         11  brake purposes, and I guess it matters where the bus

         12  has been running previously?  If the bus has been

         13  running previously, you know, you have a head of

         14  steam built up.

         15                 MR. HART:  Yes, it can take up to 30

         16  minutes, depending on the weather, depending whether

         17  the bus has been, as you say, has been - -

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  For the brakes,

         19  for the brakes?

         20                 MR. HART:  Yes, to make it

         21  sufficient.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  So what do you

         23  guys do now?  Because we are not changing like the

         24  time structure now, we are just changing the penalty

         25  structure.  So it would seem that based on the
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          2  number of violations that DEP, you know, reports to

          3  have issued in the last year, which is less than one

          4  per day for the entire City.  Although, I guess

          5  presumably that would just be for DEP summonses and

          6  not for other agents that would write these, or

          7  maybe it is all for the City.  Or it seems that

          8  there has been some discretion that has been used,

          9  if less than one ticket per day for the entire City

         10  is being written; would that be a fair assessment?

         11                 MR. HART:  That is a fair assessment.

         12    And let me also say that the other thing that

         13  happens, you will find an awful lot of buses who

         14  will circle.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh, I see, in

         16  order to--

         17                 MR. HART:  Just keep circling until

         18  they can move in, and perhaps find a place in front

         19  of the hotel or the theater.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I see.

         21                 MR. HART:  Just not to get the

         22  ticket, because for a lot of bus companies, the

         23  ticket is on the driver.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh, I see.

         25                 MR. HART:  The companies, it is
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          2  written into the contract with the drivers, that the

          3  driver is responsible for any and all traffic

          4  tickets.  So rather than get the ticket, they

          5  sensibly just continue to circle.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I see, I see.

          7  I have a couple of more questions, but I like to

          8  recognize my colleague, Council Member DeBlasio, who

          9  has a question, and I do not want to make him any

         10  longer.  Council Member DeBlasio.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  Thank you,

         12  Mr. Chair.  Thank you, again, for your leadership on

         13  this issue and so many others.

         14                 Mr. Hart, I want to thank you for

         15  your testimony.  I, you know, I am, in part because

         16  of the community I represent, and part because of my

         17  beliefs, I feel very strongly on the idling issue,

         18  and I commend the chair, and I commend Council

         19  Member Moskowitz for their work.  I have also put in

         20  separate legislation focused on trucks, in

         21  particular.  And I think the bottom line here is we

         22  really need to find a pretty radical way to take

         23  some action here for the good of our health and our

         24  environment.

         25                 But I do want to thank you and
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          2  commend you because your testimony is very eye

          3  opening.  And we hear a lot of testimony.  This

          4  Committee has a lot of meetings, we hear a lot of

          5  testimony, and a lot of it does not hit home,

          6  despite the good intentions.  This hits home, and I

          7  have to say, you know, I want to see us take very

          8  strong action here, but you have raised some points

          9  that I think we have to take into account, including

         10  the fact that if you do not have a place to park

         11  your buses, it implicitly adds to the amount of

         12  pollution in the air.  I think that is a very

         13  helpful and straightforward point.  And the reality

         14  of what you have to do to load and unload your

         15  passengers, et cetera.  So, I would just say, it is

         16  helpful and I really think it will help us in the

         17  legislative process.

         18                 It doesn't one iota reduce my fervor

         19  to get a solution here, but it does say that it is

         20  something that we have to work with you on in good

         21  faith.  So, thank you.

         22                 MR. HART:  Thank you, Mr. Councilman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         24  Council Member DeBlasio, and I certainly wish to be

         25  associated with those remarks.  It really captured

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  the spirit of your testimony, and it is very helpful

          3  that you, you know, brought all this information to

          4  the table so that we could work with that.

          5                 Do know if you have any Notice of

          6  Violations regarding idling vehicle that your

          7  members have received in the last couple of years?

          8  I know there are different companies, and I do not

          9  know if you track that, or what is the sense out

         10  there?

         11                 MR. HART:  We do not track it

         12  specifically. We hear about it generally when there

         13  is a, more where there is a huge conference or

         14  convention going on in the City.  We heard about it

         15  in January when we had our motorcoach, what we call

         16  our marketplace, we had it in the Javit Center.  We

         17  expect to hear more about it in the Republican

         18  Conventional when that starts.

         19                 So we hear about it fits and starts,

         20  we do not track it.  I wish I could be more helpful

         21  with that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  No, it is quite

         23  all right.  But I just wanted to know if you had

         24  some numbers on that, but we can get that from DEP.

         25                 MR. HART:  May I ask, Mr. Chairman,
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          2  if you, when you get it from DEP, would you send us

          3  a copy, because it may be something that we would

          4  like to start tracking, and that might be, wind down

          5  to the benefit of all of us?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, sure.

          7                 MR. HART:  If that is possible, I do

          8  not know.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, that will

         10  be fine, and we have a representative of the Mayor's

         11  Office who can transmit that request to DEP.  Thank

         12  you.

         13                 What kind of education, if any of you

         14  do, your motorcoach companies provide to their

         15  drivers concerning the restrictions on idling?

         16                 MR. HART:  The bigger companies and

         17  the more established companies, like Campus Coach,

         18  and certainly, Academy Bus Lines, have an extensive

         19  training program.  As you might imagine, since

         20  Academy is all throughout this area, they have to

         21  take, make sure their drivers are cognizant of all

         22  the regulations.  So they have a fairly significant

         23  program.

         24                 Our problem is, not surprisingly, the

         25  bigger, more established companies have a bigger and
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          2  better program.  Our job at ABA has been to try and

          3  raise the floor with regard to what our members do

          4  for their drivers, and it is something that we are

          5  constantly on them about. In fact, the brochure I

          6  just passed out with my testimony, motorcoaches in

          7  the community is just, is another tool that we are

          8  trying to get to our members and their drivers as to

          9  what a good motorcoach company looks like that would

         10  be welcome in the community, rather than shunned.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, this looks

         12  great, if I was on one of these buses, you know, I

         13  do not think I would want to get off, playing cards,

         14  hanging out, very nice, very nice.  Thank you, thank

         15  you.

         16                 Do you think that increased signage

         17  would help drivers to better comply with the City's

         18  Idling Law, and any recommendations that you may

         19  have that you believe they should be placed for

         20  maximum effect?

         21                 Well I think, certainly, increased

         22  signage would help.  I think that is always a help,

         23  it keeps people in the back of their minds that

         24  there is something that they have to be aware of.  I

         25  do not know that I have any suggestions as to where
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          2  to put them.  I listened to the testimony of the

          3  City officials, and I will take their expertise for

          4  that.  But I am a believer in signage.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

          6  Thank you, Mr. Hart.  I have no further questions,

          7  and I would just like to make sure that you have the

          8  ability to work with the Counsel to the Committee,

          9  Donna De Costanzo.  Do you have her information?

         10                 MR. HART:  I do, as a matter of fact.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, terrific.

         12                 MR. HART:  I will be glad to.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Fine.

         14                 MR. HART:  Especially on that issue

         15  about the device.  I think just a few words of

         16  clarification would be immensely helpful in that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure, sure, and

         18  I am urging the staff of the Committee to work

         19  closely with you to do whatever it can to make you

         20  know common sense accommodations for your very

         21  important industry.

         22                 MR. HART:  Good.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Mr.

         24  Hart. I appreciate your coming over.

         25                 MR. HART:  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Have a safe

          3  trip back.

          4                 MR. HART:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, we have a

          6  final witness, a final panel of witnesses,

          7  Christopher Greaves from WE ACT, and Tim Logan of

          8  New York City Environmental Justice Alliance.

          9                 Mr. Greaves, thank you, welcome.  Tim

         10  is on his way, and we will just wait until Tim takes

         11  his seat, and then we will have a little panel

         12  there.

         13                 So, thank you, thank you, Tim.  And

         14  so Donna De Costanzo will administer the oath, and

         15  then you can proceed with your testimony.  We will

         16  take Mr. Greaves testimony first.

         17                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please, raise your

         18  right hands.  In the testimony that you are about to

         19  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         20  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         21                 MR. GREAVES:  I do.

         22                 MR. LOGAN:  I do.

         23                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.  Thank

         24  you, Mr. Greaves, please commence, thanks very much

         25  for coming here.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You have to

          3  turn, you have to have the light off.

          4                 MR. GREAVES:  Okay.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, good, you

          6  have got it.

          7                 MR. GREAVES:  Okay, thanks for this

          8  opportunity to testify before the Committee on

          9  Environmental Protection around the proposed

         10  amendment to Intro. 110- A.  My name is Chris

         11  Greaves, and I am Communications Director for West

         12  Harlem Environmental Action, Inc., also known as WE

         13  ACT.  WE ACT is a 15- year old community- based,

         14  501(c)3 organization whose mission is to promote

         15  environmental health, and secure environmental

         16  justice for the half million, predominantly African

         17  American and Latino residents of Northern Manhattan

         18  through community organizing, advocacy, and

         19  community- based research.  WE ACT's model of

         20  community action is designed to fight for improved

         21  public health, quality of life, and environmental

         22  policy both locally and nationally.

         23                 Before I continue, I kind of just

         24  have a question about ultimately, who will be - -

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  We ask the
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          2  questions here.

          3                 MR. GREAVES:  Okay, but it kind of,

          4  the rest of my testimony kind of hinges on this.  We

          5  are not sure, ultimately, who will be the paying the

          6  penalty for bus idling.  So I am here today to offer

          7  a qualified support for the proposed changes to

          8  Intro. 110- A.  We support the proposed increases in

          9  the penalties and the proposed changes to Section

         10  24- 163, parts (a) and (b).  However, while we

         11  recognize and have long argued that enforcement is

         12  one of the cornerstones of good environmental and

         13  public health policy, we are concerned that the

         14  enforcement of 110- A will have an undesirable

         15  impact, if the penalties that flow from the law fall

         16  on the bus drivers.  We feel the burden of penalties

         17  should be born by the operation, not the operators.

         18                 Residents of New York City, and in

         19  Manhattan in particular, are all too familiar with

         20  the damage that air pollution can do to our health

         21  and quality of life. The County of Manhattan has

         22  never been in attainment with EPA's 8- hour ozone

         23  standards, and we will shortly be classified as non-

         24  attainment for the new PM 2.5 standard. Due to this

         25  non- attainment, residents of Northern Manhattan are
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          2  particularly vulnerable to the adverse health effect

          3  of ozone and fine particulate matter.  Both are

          4  associated with increased respiratory problems,

          5  including asthma attacks.  The communities of

          6  Northern Manhattan, like other low- income

          7  communities of color in New York, stagger under the

          8  burden of asthma.  In the year 2000, New York City's

          9  childhood asthma hospitalization rate was twice the

         10  national average, while the rate in East Harlem was

         11  more than five times the national average.  African-

         12  Americans die from asthma attacks at twice the rate

         13  of whites, and are sent to the emergency room at

         14  three times that rate.

         15                 That said, WE ACT supports the

         16  amendment before the Council, however, we await

         17  clarification on whether or not the bus drivers

         18  would be penalized for bus idling.  We do not

         19  support penalties for bus drivers.

         20                 I would also like to add, I listened

         21  to the testimony from DOT, and I think it is also

         22  important that signs be posted publicly, you know,

         23  in the spirit of openness and visibility with the

         24  communities they are operating in.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.  Thank
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          2  you, thank you.  I have some questions for you, but

          3  I will wait until Mr. Logan gives his statement.

          4                 MR. LOGAN:  Hi, Timothy Logan, Urban

          5  Infrastructure Coordinator for the New York City

          6  Environmental Justice Alliance.  The New York City

          7  Environmental Justice Alliance is a citywide network

          8  that links grassroots organizations in low- income

          9  neighborhoods and communities of color, and their

         10  struggle against environmental racism.  Founded in

         11  1991, NYCEJA supports community lead initiatives

         12  through its network of professional environmental

         13  advocates, attorneys, scientists, health

         14  specialists.  NYCEJA provides resources that enable

         15  our membership organizations to engage in effective

         16  advocacy on behalf of grassroots communities and

         17  health impacts of public and private actions and

         18  policies.

         19                 My duties and responsibilities with

         20  NYCEJA address several important areas, including

         21  Solid Waste Management in DSNY's definition of the

         22  term, Energy and Sustainable Development.  In these

         23  contacts, I serve as a technical advisor to both the

         24  Organization Waterfront Neighborhoods, OWN, and

         25  Communities United for Responsible Energy.  I also
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          2  serve as Chair of the New York City Waste Prevention

          3  Coalition, the past two years, and its Steering

          4  Committee since its inception.  I point out all

          5  these positions to frame the context of my work and

          6  the point of view from which I have considered

          7  Intro. 110- A for this testimony.

          8                 The sum of my work and the collective

          9  work of staff member organizations within NYCEJA

         10  have, not surprisingly, come to the conclusion that

         11  idling and non point pollution, or mobile source

         12  pollution, is one of the greatest air emission

         13  concerns within New York City.  The unnecessary

         14  emissions from illegal idling lead to and exacerbate

         15  asthma, emphysema and other upper respiratory

         16  ailments.

         17                 I would like to extend NYCEJA's full

         18  organizational support for this measure and others

         19  like Council Member Lopez's Asthma Free School Zone

         20  legislation, which we hope will be brought to a

         21  hearing in the not too distant future.

         22                 We are, of course, concerned as well

         23  about issues dealing with fines for bus drivers,

         24  with the personal responsibility that is put upon

         25  them, requires them to turn off their buses.  So
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          2  that is up to them, whether or not they want to take

          3  that.

          4                 I encourage your continued attention

          5  to these details, and encourage you to also meet

          6  with the NYPD to discuss opportunities to engage

          7  their officers to participate in the enforcement

          8  efforts related to idling. NYCEJA has had a series

          9  of discussions with the NYPD, and believes that the

         10  additional pressure, support from the Council could

         11  only be viewed in a positive manner.

         12                 I would like to thank the Council and

         13  this Committee for your continued attention to air

         14  emissions from non- point pollution and/or mobile

         15  source emissions.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         17  thank you both for your supportive and thoughtful

         18  testimony.

         19                 And thank you for raising the point

         20  about the penalty, to the penalties being born by

         21  the operation, and not the operators.  Yeah, we

         22  will, I have directed the Counsel to the Committee

         23  to make sure that this is, you know, specified

         24  appropriately so that we do not have any problems.

         25                 With regard to the signage, you heard
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          2  the testimony that the Administration offered

          3  regarding signage, is there any recommendations or

          4  things or any other comments regarding signage that

          5  you want to bring to the table?

          6                 MR. LOGAN:  I do not have any other

          7  comments to add on the signage, but I picked that up

          8  in his testimony, and I thought that should be

          9  addressed too. That you would want to have signs

         10  publicly posted, and not--

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  We are pick on

         12  signs.

         13                 MR. LOGAN:  Okay.  I would also like

         14  to encourage that public signs, as well as, I think

         15  they were discussing the question about how much you

         16  can fit on the sign?  I do not think there is any

         17  problem, I have seen some signs that have lots of

         18  small print on the bottom. About putting the maximum

         19  penalties so people are understanding just how bad

         20  an idea it is to idling, area.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, because I

         22  think the, I mean in the areas of the City where it

         23  is like, you know, horn- honking $350 fine.  I do

         24  not honk my horn when I see that sign.  And so we

         25  are very much for signage.  And we would like both
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          2  of you to stay in contact with Donna De Costanzo and

          3  Richard Colon regarding this bill as it goes

          4  forward.  And we would like to thank you also, for

          5  your support of the Council's full range of, you

          6  know, anti asthma efforts, and we thank you for your

          7  strong support in that regard.  Both of your

          8  organizations have been real champions in that

          9  regard, and we thank you very much for your

         10  continued cooperation and advocacy on that very

         11  important issue.  So, thank you both very much for

         12  being here, and please give my best to Peggy from WE

         13  ACT.

         14                 MR. GREAVES:  Okay.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And I also have

         16  to read into the record, there was testimony

         17  submitted for the record, Anthony Renaldo, Executive

         18  Board Member of the Amalgamated Transit Union, Local

         19  Division 1181.  And William G. Joyce, Jr., President

         20  of the New York State Motor Truck Association.

         21                 So thank you, with that said, I would

         22  like to thank everyone who came out to our hearing

         23  today, and with no one else wishing to be heard,

         24  this hearing is adjourned.  Thank you.

         25                 (Hearing adjourned at 2:35 p.m.)
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